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17 Works Coy RCE

1. Herewith is a copy of the Histqu of 17 Works Coy
covering the period of its operation from 1946 to 1964, for
your retention. IR : N

2. The present members of this unit wish to acknowledge
- the many suggestions and assistance provided by all former
members in the preparation of this account, ‘

3. . It is hoped that this history will help to recall
- .events and incidents to all who have been associated with
17 Works Coy over the eighteen years of its service on the
. Northwest Highway System, and to permanently record the

unit's contribution in the development of the Yukon and

Ndrtheastqrn'British Columbia. 

T AL

(ﬁé_Elfné?}—Major _
Commanding Officer:
17 Works Coy RCE
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INTRODUCTICN

| : The Sto;J of 17 Works Coy RCE over the eighteen years
' of its existence is part of the 1arger story of the contribution
nmde by the Canadlan Army during its operation of the Northﬂest
Highwqy System in the development of North=astern British

4 Columbia and the Yukon, Although the Army's role essentially
has been that of a caretaker of the Alaska Highway, from the
date Bf its takeover from tHe Us Army wntil the time that a _‘
"'civilian agency cowid assumsé this respon91b11ity, nevarthelesb
its impact on the local economy and its ability to provmie a
reliable all-weather link between Alaska and the Outside is an
achievement which deserves a place in’thevhistory of Canada.

By casting back eighteen years in hie memory, the
reader can recall those early post war days when the Canadian
Army was demobi] f7ine ranidts ~fier the conclusion of
hostilities in Europes and the Far East. The task of
re-establishing the country's industries on a peacetime
footing, rehousing returned servicemen and 1mpfoving their
academic education to fit them fer new occupations were the
major aims of the government in 1946,

The easing of tensions in 1944 and 1945 as a result.
of the evacustirn ol lzpznesc troops from the Aleutiens had
left the Yukon as a backwatc. *=» *"a war effort. The roaﬂ
pushed through with the energy and dispatch so typical of
American methods was still a considerable challenge to
militaryoconvoys and anythir:: bhut a reasonable proposition
for civilian traffic. Outside of hastily constructed road
camps and minor settlemsnts along the highway, the amenitines
and accommodation to cater to the traveller>were almost
non-existent.. At that time,yonly the organization and

direction of~ﬂﬁlitary"engineeregsuﬁported by the resources
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énd épr?ience of able sefﬁice troops could neef the challenge
of maintaining and improving this vital link between isolated
: cpm@uﬁitiég'whefe naturai;disastéfé such as forest fires,h
floods, slides and sﬁbearéic wintef dorditions could strike
whthout varsing.
17 Works Coy which was present at the commencement
of this unique and challenging task as No. 17 Engineer Services
agd Works Coy, has been concerned over the years with a variety-
of tasks in the support of the Highway Maintenance Establishment.’
Although its paramount purpose has always been in the field
of providing and xﬁaintaii;ing accommodation for the headquarters
of the Highway System, the maintenance teams on the road, and »
for the supporting service units to a standard equivalent to
that of the more civilized parfs'of the country, the absence
of the normal muniéipal services usually provided to most
military establishments by other agencies has increased the
_work load of the unit greatly in the utility operation field.
A unit, whose operation extends over 1,200 miles of"
road, the equivaleﬁt of the distance between Vancouver and.
Regina, with three major and gsixteen minor camps to maintain,
separateﬂ successively from each other by from fifty to one
hundred miles of road, has a major problem of transportation
in the movement of stores, tradesmen and equipment to carry
out its tasks. Under such circumstances, the value of up-to-.
date property records, site =l building plans for the
preplanningvof the annual construction and maintenance work
can be easily seen. To achieve this, field trips for extended
periods by property surveyors obtaining and forwagding data
to_theiconpany?s_draughting office has been a continuing
requirement,
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- ‘Distances from the -’-nea;esi;.'m3~or iéupply«céﬁtr'es,
Edmonton, 1,300 miles awvay and Vancouver bver 1;600 miles
ﬂfrom Whitehorse , have requu'ed heavy storbé hdidlhgs in
. dddition to early requisitioning of replacement stores to
meet the exigencies of a short 'working seagon.

With most NWHS: camps ‘along the Highway of wood
frame -construction, having 1im1ted water storage for i‘ire
fighting and an obligation, ususlly umvritten, to assist

: ‘loga';l commnities through a pooling of fire fighting
- gervices, a vigoroﬁs ard con=nientious drive to reduce fire
- hazards ‘ha:s: been pursued by all members ‘of the Highway
- . System. . 17 Works Coy, responsible for fire preverition; ‘has
actively -diroctod this ‘most imoorte;nt programms 'ov'-er- the
- years,

: A.numbef ‘of joint Canadian-US Army defence
exercises have made use of the road facilities ‘of the
- Alaska Highway to reach the rugged terrain of the Yukon and
* have required logistic support by locel service units of
the NWHS. In the forefront of this assisiance, 17 Works Coy

- has played a vital role in the provision of accommodation,

~w-water supply, and other engineer- services.

The relative isolation of the communities along
“the Highway has no doubt beén responsible’ for the very
-evident attitule of :friendl‘inéss known so well throughout
“the NORTH, - This spirit has i?'ostered'*many'_~spofts ‘
competitions, both in ‘summer and winter. Not only ha§'e
-all: service uﬁi?bs been :active in inter-‘ﬁni’:t' leagues, but
“the military units at all locations have completely
‘Antegrated with the civilian commmnity to work and compete

“together. .In this respectp,'.olﬂ'%!brl'ks Coy has played a
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vigorous part as it has also done when local disasters have

created human hard:zhip in the area.

It 1s hoped thet by taking each of the major
functions carried out 01;61' the years by 17 Works Coy, by
examining each in detefl in relation to a particular year
or period, %o thus illustrate the growth of the works |
organization in meeting its commitments and in improving
the standard of accommodation throughcut the Northwest
Highwey System. Each then will be covered in turn in

succeeding chapters,

e/
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1. On 1st April 1946 therAmerican“Afﬁglhéﬁ&éd SVér*to

>the-Cana.d'ian Army -the’-' responsibility of maintaining “the - .

“"ilaska Highway", from Mile Post 0 at Dawson Creek, B.Ca,

“to Mile Post 1221.4, a‘t‘the Yukon~Alaska border.

2. . At this time the Works Coy RCE was formed and was

‘known as No. 17 Engineer Services and Wnrks Coy RCE.

‘3. - The firsrt establisghment for the ."Worié's' v'C‘oyf"
consisted of two officers and seventy-six other ranks,
including the Dawson Creek Letachment, B.C. {form;fly

" located at Fort Nelson, B.C.).

L. From the period 1946 ‘to 1952 the establishment was
' ameﬁded three times ‘to’cope with tﬁe increase wgkaOwdldf
the wnit. In 1952 the establishient stocd at 199 all ranks

" (militery and civilian;..

5, © In 1956 the establishment was amended again:and
increased to 316 all ranks (military end civilianm).

6. One amendment which took place ih'iQSS'waéuthé

‘Technician 3 Stores Officer position,‘which waé*donvéfiea
from civilian to military and veplaced by a Werrant Officer

Class II.

7. In June 1959 the DaWSon'Creekrbétacﬁiﬁ.eh't (17 Works

Coy RCE) was relocated from MP O Dauson Cfeék %olﬁP 360;

Fort Nelson, B.C., because *™- workload had shifted afi‘éi‘

the first 83 miles of the Highway had been paved.

8. In November 1959 the establishment was reduced

from 316 to 259 because of a reduction in wakioai in the

utilities section and a reduction in the "Sappér" trédes}

9. Mr George Umierwdod, who wes the Unit's Administration

Officer for seven years (1953-1960), left the wit in

eei/b
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October 1960, This position was then converted to a
milité.ry Lieutanant Admiﬂ position. ,

10. During the beriod 1953 to 1962, the establishments
of the Highway were constently beihg reviewéds It was the
11;f;ention of the "Commander" of the Hiéhway to amaiga_;_ngtg
several functions into‘one oﬁeration.

11, In 1962 the- establishment of 17 Works Coy RCE
was reduced from 259 to 208. The transport section was
completely deleted with 19 Coy RCASC controlling all
vehicles_énd HME contfolling a1l heavy equipment. 17 Works
Coy took ‘over HME Stores and 16 Coy RCEME all mechsnics.
The units QM Stores (Oranance, wes transferred to 14 Coy
RCOC There was also a reduct.ion in civilian tradesmen.
12. The present establightient consists of 33 military
and 175 civilian persoimel. £%iached at Anner "AM is the
list of milii;ar& and cfficer gtatus_giv;iiian personnel.

13.  4ttached at Annex "B" are :@fg{é following lists:-

a. Commandi:\g 01“..,91"* from 1946 to 1964.

b. Civilian persomel oi‘ OfIic‘—“‘ .;tatus

prev;ously erwloyed ‘ o
c?bmn.lian employces continuously employed
rom 1946 to 1954 | |
d, Civilians employed fo;' more s .”. ten years.
|  FINANCIAL
14. ’ The.financiallreCV;qs from 1946 to 1959 are
very 'few and n§ accurate recofds can be fouhd, except
that in the fiscal year _1949/ 50 the Works qu spent
approximately $2,500,000.00 1n an'Primar'ies.

In the 1962/63 fiscal year, the Works Coy spent
approximately %1 120,941.00 and in the 1963/64 fiscal year
the WOrks Ccy spent 41, OO0,000 00 in carrylng out its role
" of prpvﬂding and maintaining accommodation and related -
services. ' , eed/T
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On Apfil 1st, 1961, the Works Coy assumed the:
responsibilities from RCASC of Primary 19, which included
vater gervices, fire protection and fire fighting services,
electricity, non-tesident échbél fees, etc, witholt an

increase to the sstablishment.

o /8



ANNEX "AY to

.CHAPTER II
17 womcé, COY RCE |
NOMINAL ROLT, JAN 64
WHITEHORSE, YT |
M 3543 Major  ELNRR DG CD co
26 6473 - Capt BARRIGAR  CJ 210
7M 9488 It HAMMOND ~ HWJ CD Projects Off1cer

SP 10755 SM(WOL) GARNETT  GF D & GIASP Adm Officer

SC 5594 QMS(W02) BONE ad Mech "EM QUS

SP 10494 QMS (W02) HAIRE PN CD & GIAHP Engr Acct QM8

SC 72438 QMS(WO2) SHAW ADS CD F of Works QMS
SC 124153 QMS(W02) WYATT sG €D - Dtm QMs"

SB 153160 S Sgt  BFREZOWSKI E D F of Works S Sgt
SG 6940 . Sgt BROWN. - BE CD  Sgt Fngr Acct
SC 124855 A/Sgt ~ CLOSS A R Sgt Engr Acct

SF 90402 L Sgt  DUNFHY =~ JF ' Cpl Flumber

SC' 136517 A/Sgt.  HALLIWELL JW Sgt Dtm ASE
SM9797 Sgt  KRANTZ. A  CD F of Works Sgt
SA 5458 A/Sgt STEWART - GM ~ Sgt Dtm A&E

SH 62249 A/Cpl  CHRISTENSEN J1 Cpl Electn

567369 Afcpl  EASTFR  WER - © Cpl-Clk Adm

SG 800345 Cpl -» MACATPINE = AE CD Cpl Cptr

Sh 126542 Cpl ROBERTSON ~ WA Cpl Dtm ASE
SL 508  Cpl WELSH F o Cpl Mech RCE
SM 109627 Spr BAWSON - AP Cptr™

SH 59386 Spr  SIOVER- ~ RA Op SEE'

'SD 26224 Spr TURNBULL RH Flectrn

SF 59386 Spr . JORDAN. . AM. CD - Plunber *

FORT NELSON DETACHMENT -

K 4499 Capt . STOVR. A @ 00

SC 34711 QMS(WO2) - PAGE RA .CD : Engr Acct QMS
SB 161593 QMS(WO02) - HARE RW CD ~ F of Worlés QMS
SK 66719 Sgt . MIUER  HGI G - St Bngr Adet

.“'/9'



~ . SK 100612 Sgt

. SF 43817  Sgt
. SC 9105  Cpl

SF 77925 Cpl

-9 -

COBBETT JA
CIAMP E
' HREHORIAK L

Mr RE FAIREY = Senior Works Officer
- Mr J PORTER - - Supervisor of Utilities
Mr GLO LOW

Mr GS SWANSON - Fire Officer III

- Estimator

CD

" T of Works Sgt

'F of Works Sgt

Cpl Clk Adm

Cpl Cptr

4 years

1 years

2 years

- 14 years

ees/10
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C.

employed by the unit from 1946 to date:

COMMANDING CFFICERS
17 WORKS GOY RCE
1946 - 1964 .

Capt RG Gillesple =~

Capt Cw Graham
Major RC Paris
Major G Coulombe
Major DG McClellan

Mejor WW Ozborne

~ Major JP Wiebe

Major JA Nicklom

Major DG Eilfner

CHAPTER II .

1 Apr 1946 to - Mar 19’1;8
Apr 1948, to Dec 195"0_
Jan 1951  to Apr 1954
Maz 1954  to Dec 1956
Dec 1956  to Nov 1957
Nov 1957 to Aug 1958
Avug 1958 " to June 1961
Jun 1961  to Jul 1963
Jul 1953  to Present.

Mr B Yates

Mr .T Rogers -
Mr R Dunlop -

Mr R Foster -

?

Mr S Burr

Mr G Davies

The following civilian employe=s have - been

Mr D' MzcDonald

Mr FD Tromans A

Supervisor of Utilities:
Fire Chief

Supervisor of Utilities -

Estimator

Estimete:r

ANNEX "B" to.

. Senior Works Officer

Firefighter (Now FO 1)

_Giviiiéns of Officer Status employed in previous yearss:

1953-1959
1955-1961°
19£6~1961‘_:}
1946-1955

1956-1959-
1959-1962 .. .

continuouslyfj

Electrician (Now Foreman Electrn)

Civilizns employed for mére than ten years:

Mr WC Matkea

Mr G:Sﬁanson
Mr G Webber

Mr G Gaensbauer

Mr G Pettifor

* MrV Thomas

Mr G Wallden'
Mr S Wilcox

Mr JO Hunter

Firefighter (16 Years)

FO IIT (14 Years)

Plumber (16 Years)
Stat Fngr I (16 Years)
Firefighter (16 Years) -

Stat Engr II (14 Years)

Firefighter (14 Years)

* Firefighter (FO I) (15 Years)

Electrician (15 Years):

v'oo/llA



Mr S Thurston
Mr E Keenan

Mr DE Beaudoin
Mr WCE Harrison

Mr JA Richerby

Carpenter (14 Years)

PPSO I (14 Years)

Instrument Man (11 Years)

MC I, Fort.li\lel'son Det (14 Years)

Stat. Engr iI, Fort Nelson Det
(15 Years)

'_..../12
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i o III
CONSTRUGTION AND MAINTENANGE

IVTROUCTION
1. : With the assumption of responsibility for the
Northwest Highway System in 1946 by the Canadian Army, a
fornidable task lay ahead for 17 Works Goy ROE in the
maintenance of accommodation facilities. Both buildings
end utilities were built to US Army requirements, in
quantity and quality. They met the functional roles of.
a crash construction progfamme and were of a type that
had a 1life eXpectgncy of five to ten years.
2. A1l work carried out on these buildings and
utility systems, at first, were directed to meet the
needs of the Canadian Army and mainly consisted of
‘adaptation and maintenence.
3. As long range requirements became evident, wofk
was started on accommodation plans for station dévelopmént
programmes in Whitehorse, Muskwa anmd maintenence camps.
BACKGROUND
1.  TFollowing is a brief summary of the property
that became the unii's responsibility upon handover:-
a. Dawson Creek Railhead Camp
b, Eighteen maintenance camps each consisting
of a garage to house heavy equipment, a
utility building or buildings which contained
electrical generators and water supply
pumping systews. There were also five to
seven married quartérs in each camp plus
single men's quarters.
¢c. Thirty-one construction camps totalling
" approximately 300 buildings. These were

handed over in an abandoned comdition.

ees/12
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Thirteen air strips.

Eighteen emergency shelters.

The HQ NWHS complex in Lower Whitehorse
conSistiﬁg 6f»Commandérls‘Resﬂdence, HQ
offices, Whitehorse Military Hospital,
7 PMQs, several EMQs, single quarters,
Messes, Central Heating Plant, RCASC
Transport Pool, Theatre and Canteen.
The Dowell Area, Lower Whitehorse,
housed HQ 17 Works Coy RCE offices,
stores, worksiicps, garage; RCEME

Workshop; RCASC supply depot, bakery,

- POL station, offices and garage; RCOC

offices and stores buildings; HME ard
No. 1 Road heavy equipment areas, garage

and stores; High School (now Yukon Regt

. Armoury); Army Fire Hall,

Power House - located on 4th Avenue
ad jacent to west side of the Dowell Area.

Upper Whitehorse (now Camp Takhini). .

This was the main married quarters area

for NWHS personnel in Whitehorse, the
buildings consisting of one story frame
construction and pre-fab Cemestos.
Refinery Area - this was a complete oil
refinery erected by the US Army during the
war, At the time of hardover, it was not

in use.

The amount of buildings and property available

for HQ NWHS use in the Whitehorse srea were excessive

and disposal action commenced fairly quickly. Early

decisions were made to relocate HQ NWHS in Upper

eee/13
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Whitehorse (Camp Takhini) iﬁvﬁew péfmanent standard
Buiidings. The service units wefe to be moved from
the Dowéll Area to the ﬁéfiriérj frea (Services Area).
3. . In the Fort Nelsoh Aresa a secordary
Headquarters was developed for the Southern Area at
MP 295 ard designated Muskwa Garrison.
CONSTRUCTION PHASING |

1. Early projects undertaken, modified existing
structures but by 1949 a number of buildings were
functioning as they are today. These included a
Grocery Store in Camp Takhini; which was converted in
the Spring of 1948; the éld US Army Rec Hall in Camp
Takhini, was used as a Signal Center, Radio Station
and Rec Hall; a building was converted into the
Sgts'! Mess in Camp Takhini in 1948; 219 Workshop RCEME

 was created from the old US Army Workshop in the
Refinery Area in 1949; 6 new PMQs completed in the
maintenance camp at MP 1202, amd a start on the first
group of PMJs in Camp .Takhini.
2.- In the early 1950's, many 5uildings started to
appear. These were the results of early planning ard
were carried out by either day labour or by contract.
Many contract projects had to be supervised by Works
Coy personnel because of the non~availibility of
inspectors of the Government swmervising agencies. -
This inspection service was used for projects other
than DND, such as the RCMP HQ building in Whitehorse
and the Indian School at Lower Post, B.C. Those
buildings completed included:-

a. Three PMQ contracts of 30 units completed
' in 1950,

100 units completed
in 1951,

eos/14
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and 44 units completed in 1952 in’Camp

- Takhini,

. At Dawson Creek, B.C.- the rhilhead camp

servicing the Highway had 30 PMQ units
coftpleted in 1952.
At MP'éég Muskwa, 30 PMJs wetre completed

in1952.»

~ At-Camp Takhini, the barrack blseck Building

200&,!&.3‘30mpletd in 1952. . This 1ater

became the HQ NWHS building.

. At MP. 295 :Muskwa, -the combined men's and’

barrackablbck,Building1106 was completed

in-1952. .

., At Camp Takhini a standard: 500 meén's mess-

was completed in 1952, .

At Camp Takhini a standard CHP was completed’

in:1953; while at Muskwa MP 295 the CHP was’

finished in 1952.

.. A new.staniard'RCEME”Workshop was figiéhéd'

at MP 295 Muskwa in 1953, vhich had a _
number of constructioﬂ*probiéms afising
from the contractor being unfamiliar with
its type of design. | |

A new diesel ‘électriec power plant was
completed in the Services Area, Whitehorse,
in 1951 anﬂ,operatéd~f0r a number of years
but. was latér convértad'into‘a Heavy -

Equipment garage in 1962.

In the latter part of 1950's, construction ranged

from: the addition.of a smaller number of buildings, to

support of the Highway Maintenance Establishment at The

vo/15
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Peace River Bridge. These projects included:-

a;, Locally desigﬁéd and day 1abduf;c0nstruc£ed'
barrack blocks Nos. 203 and 204 for the
permaneént &inglé women and men; military
and civilian employees. Thess wére
completed in 1955.

b. A fire hall was provided at MP 295 Muskwa
in 1957. The Army Fire Hall in Whitehorse -
continued to occupy accommedation in the
Dowell Area of the City of Whitehorse
until 1962,

c. A local designed metal type building was
built for 19 Coy RCASC Transport Section
and completed in 1959.

d. The Junior Ranks Club was moved from Lower
Whitehorse to Camp Takhini in 1957,

e. Over the years from 1954 until 1958, a
number of buildings were relocated into
a single building, No. .60, which contained
a snack bar. bowling alley, 4 sheets of
curling ice (originally natural until an
artificial plant was installed in 1960).

f. A programme to provide some recfeationai
facilities in the maintenance camps_fo
supplement the curling rinks which had been
‘built by self help labour took the form of
recreational buildings for parties; movies,
group meetings and the like. Those at
MP 733 Swift Rifer and MP 1083 Destruction
Bay were completed in 1957, and at MP 456

Trutch in 1959.
0.6_/16
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e ;In,the-1960{3;‘the9emphdsiS“onfréplaceméﬁtiof
the US Army‘buihiingS“continuaiAto influence planning.
These buildings as mentiened, were designed for a short
life expectancy, but with mich effort and cost, had ‘been
maintained. Howeﬁef,_iﬁ respect. to married-quarters
ard some other buildings,.it was becoming almost
immpossible. to maintain these buildings any longer.
Planning was also influenced by the possibility thaﬁ
the camps in B.C. particularly, those south of MP'300
Fort Nelson, excluding MP 295 Muskwa, would be turned
over- to the B.C. Government,: os-the proposed paving
programme continued up the Highway. Accordingly, no
new construction took place in this section of the |
Highway. Buildings constructed in this period consisted of:-
a. Completion of theigggmﬁall programme with

those at MP 392 Summit, MP 543 Coal River

and MP 635 Watson Lake being completed

in 1960.
—

b. Married guarters constructed of G.P. Hutting

and modified by local design were erected
at MP 1016 Haines Jct, MP 1083 Destruction

'Bay, MP 635 Watson Lake and completed by

'1960. This project also included major
—_—

rehabilitation of utilities systems in

these camps. All work was done by day

labour,

c. Married quarters consisting of trailer

units, somewhat modified, were ‘completed

in 1963 at MP 733 Swift River anmd MP 543
Coal River, The site adaptation amd
utilities were done by day labour construction.

oo /17
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d.l Locally degiénéd maintenance camp garages

of Butler buildings (metal) were constructed
by day labour at MP 635 Watson lake and
' ' .

MP 1016 Haines Jct. The building at Watson
“ars e %
laké was undertaken as winter work which 0V€%2A4 !
proved a great challenge for the Staff Sgt

Foreman of Works.,

e. A large contract was awarded in 1961 fer

S ——

four buildings in the Whitehorse Area.

These were the modification of the power
plant building to a heavy equipment garage,
a Fire Hall for Camp Takhini, a large
warehouse for both 14 Coy RCOC and the DID
function of 19 Cay RCASC and a large bulk
POL building for 19 Cey RCASC. All buildings
were compléted by 1962. Work was done under
DCL supervision.

f. At Muskwa MP 295, a number of projects Qere
undertaken during this pe}idd. Because of
excessive priceé obtained bt tender call;
work was carried out by day labour. ‘This
incluled relocating large truss type
buildings from the Airbase, some 15 miles
away and then erecting and finishing at
Muskwa Garrisbn. The buildings were a
new Officers/Sgts combined mess,
enlargement of the mens canteen using
the old Officers/Sgts Mess, the pfovision
of a large Rec Hall and the new AWS Stores
and Workshop. A1l projeéts will be

completed by early 1964.

ve./18
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g.. The relocation of 17 Works Coy from the
Dawell Area, City of Whitehorse, to the
Services Area is naw complete as.é;day_
labeur ﬁroject. ' This project remives nearly
all functions of the Canadian Army from
the City proper. The enly exceptions being
buiidings notw surplussed and the Officér's
Mess. A proposal for a new Officef's Mesé
located in Camp Takhini was pending when
all Army planning ceased for the NWHS.
5. At the time of the aunouncement of the handover
te £he Department of Public Works, many plans had been
develeped to cemplete the renewal of permanent buildings,
along the Highway of quarters, garages,'utility
" buildings, transient qﬁarters, utility systems, etc.
6. The brief description of the major construction
projects in this chapter indicates the type, number
ani.size of the problems faced by 17 Works Coy RCE ever
the years. In actuality, there were far more problems
encountered in freeze-ups, maintenance of old buildings
and old utility systems etc, that are not mentioned.
In many cases some eventé are lost beyend recall of
thoéevnow'rémaining on the Highway who were originally
here in 1946, amd are still with this Works Company.
Many projects of a minor nature supplemented the major
construction projects and the fact that reasonable
accommodation has been provided amd improved fbr units
of.the NWHS is a tribute to all those who served with

this unit.
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PMQ's Beaver Creek TMQ'e Destruction Eay
MP 1202 - MP 1083 y

* RCE ozf_inoa, Workshop, Stores Building
: : - Magkwa, B.C.; MP 295




TRATLER HOMES MP 543 & MP 733



HQ - 17 WKS COY RCE
10406-1962 "

Loxstavg Building Wood Frame amd Wallboard
sem{@Prefab Shope % Storage Building

-

AL US AK L1D ING - : IN 1946



P e
i rried rters

Frame Construction
Frame Construction T
RCEME Workshop

N A
TYPICAL US ARMY BUIIDINGS HANDED OVER I
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CHAPTER IV

OPERATIONS - ETECTRICAL

Upper Wﬁiteborge (Camp Takhini)

a. Electrical power generation was originally
produced by the Yukon Eleétric; doﬁnpany
Llnﬁted from a small plant. An increased
demand in tHe Whitshorde Area for powbr was
met by the construction of & hydro-electric
producing system on the McIntyre Creek and
Porter Cfeek watersheds.

b. The heavy demard imposed on the area with
the arrival ol ‘L.e US Army in 1942 for the
construction of the Alaska Highway could not
‘be hardled from these sources and the US Army
constructed power plants ‘to meef'their_own
‘requirements.

c. With the assumption of maintenance of the
Northwest Highwey System by the Canadian

~Army in 1946, the same plants were utilized
until their replacement became economically
necessary. - A large power iplant located "in
the present Services Area was constructed
and the c°3 US Army:built plants:were
~¢losed down. This plant:met DND power

' requirements in Lower Whitehorse, the
“Services Area and Upper Whitehorse. Yukon
Electric Company Limited continued .to

-‘serve the general community.

“d. Other considerations in the Whitehorse Area
indicated tﬁat‘for a steady. growth of the
community, the hydro-electric-development

~ of the Whitehorse Rapids by the -Northern

. Canada Power i.Cormniss‘ionlif'(NCPC) should be

. eee/20
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carrie&-out. To make this project
economically sound, elécfti& heating nf the
Whitehorée4Géhe§al\Hbspi%éikcgﬁﬁlex and
purchase of péwer from this hew dource by
DND was necessary. With redﬁéea DND
jnterests in Lower Whitehorse and with

‘the construction of Camp Takhini in Upper
Whitehorse, it was decided that the
distribution system should be administered
b& the Yukon Electric Company when power

became available from NCPC. An agreement

between DND and Yukon Electric was

accordingly signed on 10 Apr 59 to meet .

these corditions.

2. Mu, Garrison, B.C, (MP 295
a. The power house at Muskwa Garrison, MP 295,

C.

is of standard DND Army design, a permanent
building built in 1952 at a cost of
$180,000.00.

Generating equipment in tﬁis building

consists of three 85 KW diesel driven

_generators, one 375 KW diesel driven

generator and one 300 KW diesel driven
generator, portable, along side of the
power house &1 zomplete with the

necessary panels and controls.

Distribution of power is for the Central

Heating Plant, Water Treatment Plant, PMQs,
barracks, kitchen, recreatibn hall, theatre,
REME workshops and offices and street
lighting.
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d.- Fuel o0il used per year is estimated. from:
monthly return logs as 123,973 gals.

e. These génerators havesgivén-gooi*service
over the years but major and minor overhaul
costs are gettihg more frequent~which_
coﬁsequently has led to negotiations with
.the BC HydFo.authorities over the last
several years for the buyihg-of power at a
reasotiable raté to bbth parﬁiés; '

£.. After numerous discussions ard plans it was
agreed by both DND Army and BC Hydro
authorities.that hydro power could-be:
brought into Muskwa Garrison and money has:
been made: available for the building of a
substation of three 200 KVA transformers
and metered services to PMQs.

g. A design for a transformer bank and
sub-station has beep~drawn up. and submitted
to AHQ Ottawa, for épproval fér work to
begin as soon as possible on the

aforementioned project.

3. Dawson Creek, B.C. (MP 0)

Power is supplied to this location under'an.
agreement between DND and the BC Power Commission dated
1 Aug 59.
4e Watson Iake, Yukon (MP 635)

Power is supplied to this locétion under an
agreementrbetween DND and the Yukon Electric Company
dated 15 Dec 60. |

5+ Destruction Bay (MP 1083) and Beaver Creek (MP 1206)

An agreement for the supply of -electrical power
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" to DID by Yukon Electric Company was'signed on 27 Feb 63
“and ths éﬁﬁﬁly Sf poﬁér commenced ofi 1 Oct'633 at both
these incatioﬁs;. : .

6. ?hq'rémaihfhg camps on the HighWaj;generateé

" their éwn poﬁer‘using=tW6 diesel generatcrs per camp.

UTILITIES OPERATIONS 4 HEATING. PLANTS

CENTRAL HEATING PIANT - CAMP TAKHINI

1. This utility is of standard'ﬁNﬁ'Army'déSign, a
‘permanent building, built in the year 1953 at a cost of
$458,028.,00.

2, Housed: in this buildiﬁg are two "John Inglis"
water-tube boilers of 250 HP each, oil fired by using
"Iron Pire-man Rotary burners" and are caﬁéblé of
producing 30,000 1bs of éteam per hour at 100 1bs per
square inch,

3. Both boilers are equipped with forced and induced
draft fans, Bailey meter automatic combustion controls ani
meters, the operation of the boilers is designed:to be
automatic but can also be operated manually.

be Fuel oil is taken from two 10,000 géilon
undergroumd'tanks.

5. The boiler feed-water pumps are dual "Darling"'
centrifugal pumps electrically driven.

6. A standby steam . ..ne driven feed pump is
also installed in case of emergencies arising from
electric failure or unforeseen repairs,.these in turn
‘are controlled by thgwrequired'high and low safety

water controls on éach boiler in accordance with
Provincial amd A.S.M.E. codes.

7. The steam is delivered from the Central Heating
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Plant at boiler pressure to permanent buildings such as
Single Women's Quarters, 500 Man Mess“Hailz Men's Barrack:
Block, NWHS ﬁeadquarters Euilding, temporary bﬁildings_
such as Cufling Rink, Bhig #207 men's tempofgry barrack
block. sieam is also suppliéd to the Territorial school
on a customer agreement, through an undergrdund Ric-wil
steam diétribdtioﬂ SYStem; |
8. ‘Bach building supplied with high pressure

" gteanm is equipped with one or more pressure reducihg
statioﬁs to 5, 15 and 25 PSI. This low pressure steam is
utilized for steam pressure ciokers, space heating and
supplies of domestic hot water. Condensate is collected
in each 5uilding for return back to the Central‘Heating
Flant, o
9. | The system is designed to return a minimum of
90% of condensate to the boilers. |

10. Average fuel consumption per year is 242?000
gals of #2 furnace oil for an efficiency of 80%-82% :
per boiler.

11; There is no foreséen major repaii's or
main@enance required to the steam producing or
distribution equiément_at this time.

SATELITE PIANTS

1. Satelite plants in the immediate area to

Camp Takhini are Mile Post 918, housing & locomotive
type boiler installed by the US Army and the Fire Hall
with an aﬁtomatic 6Q HP Cleaver Brooks package unit
generatér.

BIDG #R-/4 - SERVICES AREA

1. This bailding is of framed steelvpipe, welied,
covered with woeden siding and roof. It was originally

designed for a cracking plant for the oil refinery, now
o ee/2L
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abandoned, and was purchased with a boiler ahd some
equipment for the sum of $6,600.00 in the year 1946.

2. The present steam producing equipment cénsists
bf a iaébmﬁtivé type boiier of 200 HP capabig of
préduéing 10;500 lbs of éteam per hour at 155% rating
at 80 ibs PSIi This it is oil fired with a "Ray"

oil burner.

3. This boiler is equipped with automatic
controls to burner for stop and start, high and low
pressure.relays, stack relay and high ard low water

cut puts. The unit can also be cperated manually.

be Two feed-pumps of the ceﬁtrifugal type
electric driven, feed water into the boiler which in
turn are controlled b& the low amd high demand contrals
from the beiler water colum.

| 5. The steam is delivered from the heating plant
at boiler pressure to Bldgs R-1 and R-6 by an overhead
distribution systeqF Each building supplied‘withbhigh ’
pressure steam is equipped with cne or more pressure
reducing stations to 30 1bs PSI and is utilized far
space heating and supply of hot water. Condensate is
éollected in eaCﬁ buiidiﬁg'for return back to the
ﬁeating plant,

6. The system is designed to return a ﬁinimuﬁ
of 80% of condensate to the i iiers.

7. Average fuel consumption per year is 58,400
gals of #2 furnace oil.

8. Some.repairs are foreseen to the electrical
circuits and boiler cénﬁrols in the near future. These
controls'cah be replaced by using similar equipment
frem the Dewell Area boiler room which is presently being

closed down.
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9. - It"-may'- be noted at this time that this boiler

. was built in the year 1900.

- SERVICES AREA

1:1 | EThé heating plant is iocatéd in éh opéa iﬁAfhe
main garage. This utility for heating of this building
Vonly, consists of two "Entefpriée", fire-oox type'Boileré
of 20 HP each, capable of producing 2,000 lbs of stoam
per hour at 150 1bs PSI, N
2. Both boilers are equipped with induced draft
fang, automatic controis'io "Enterprize" rotaf& cup
0il burners for stop and.sta;u,:high and low presouré
relays, stack relays ard high and 1&ﬁ water cut outs.
This unit can also be operated manually.
3. Being.a lew préssure boiler, the feed water
makeup is supplied from the main water line
distribution system.'” | |
he The steam delivered from the boilers is used
~ for space heating at boiler pressure, Condensate is
COIIthadAin'two parts of the building ard is returned
to the. boiler. _ |

5, . The system is designed ‘to return a minimum
sf 90k cordensate to the boilers.
6. - Average fuel consumptionlisfestimaté& at
27,000 gals per year  of #2 furnace oils

MUSKWA. GARRISON, B.C.

CENTRAL HEATTNG PIANT - |
1. '“‘Thié utility is of standard DND‘ArnW design,
a permanent bullﬂlng'built in the year 1954 for a
cost of %456 000,00. “Housed in this buildlng are two
"John Inglls" ‘water-tube boilers of 260 HP each, coal
fired using "Iron Fireman" over-feed stokers and are
capable of producing 30, 000 1bs of steam per hour at

100 PSI;
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2. Both boilers are equippéé:l with ffox;c:ed .afxi.
indiic_ed.d'raft fans, Bailey meter automatic cémbgstiq;x
chﬁt’rdls and_méﬁérs’. The ,o'per-a-tion-,of the bo;llefé isi
designed to be automatic but can be operated by hend
firing and manual control.

3. . The boiler feed pumps aré dual "Darli:r-ig"’ '
centrifugal pumps eleétrically driven, A s-taﬁby,_
stéam turbine driven feed pump ts also 1nst§11ed' in
céase of emergencies arising from elect'ric: failurés:
Qr unfereseen repairs. These puﬁps in tufn’ are
c;wntrolled by the requlred high and’ low saf‘ety water
controls on each boiler in accerdance wi‘bh Prov:mcial
and ASME cedes.. | |

b The stean is delivered frem the Central
Heating Plant at boiler pressure to .p.é'rmnent |
buildings such as,. RCEME} _wéfkshnp: and off'ices', .wat"er:'-
treatment plant, combined kitchen and quarters through
an. urdergreurd Ric-wil steam distribution system.

5. . Eaéha,building \sup_pli,ed,. with high pressur.e-
steam ig equipped with ‘one -oF moTe pressure reducing-
stations to 5, 15 and 25 PSL. This low pressure steam
is used -for aeration.in the water treatment plant,

- space heating and suppl_ies of domestic hot water..
6. Condensate is collected in each building
for. .return back to i,the.Cent-_:-a.L Heating Plant.  The
system is designed to return-a minimum. af 90% of.’
condensate to the .boilers... o

7. Average fuel consumptlon -per year ig 1,350
tons for a designed boiler efficiency of- 72%-’76% per -
boiler. |

8. . At the pres..éﬁi tlme a number 4of« reﬁﬁirs are -
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being carried out to bring this plant into an efficient

steam productien unit.

- WATER_PUMFING AND DISTRIBUTION

MCINTYRE CREFK, WHITRHORSE. YT

1. Thi§ utility was installed by the US Army in 1942

tb.gupbly watéf to their dependents and the City of
Whitehofse with a population at that time of about 5,300
people.

2.. It has since been reduced in distribution to
take in Camp Takhini, Servics: Area, DOT, RCAF Station
Whitehdrse and one private customer making a total of
2,400 people.

3, The present total cost of installed equipment
is estimated at %330,000.00. |

be The pumping plant has a total output of
275,000,000 gals of water per year. This capacity is
obtained from 2 "Layne" vertical centfifugal pumps, one
at 40 HP, one at 60 HP electrically driven, with a
standby gas driven engine to the 40 HP pump should any
emergencies arise from electric failﬁréé. '
5. ~ The supply of water is unlimited from McIntyre
Creek which is piékedfuP through an intake gate, flows
through a series éf concrete chambers, screened at
regulér intervals to a wet well below thg pumps then
overflows over a tail gate at a reduced velocity
allowingra settling period before being: pumped into
steel water tanks, one at Camp Takhini and éne at RCAF
Station Whitehorse. Tach has a capacity §f 250,000
gals.

6. Sterilization of the water supply is done by
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chlorination fed into the discharge side of the.pumps by
two ahtomatically operated hypochlorinators with amounts
injected as per Army ard department of hygiene
regulations
7. It sh&ubd be noted at this time that a proposed
redesign of water produ01ng fac1lities has been studled
and agreed on., It consists of formlng an art1f101a1
lake in the immedlate area to McIntyre Creek complete
with rapid sard filters am caagulatiin process at a
cest eof $100,000.00, Authmation 4f present pumping
equiphent and-gas chlorination is.estimated at %$12,000.00.
8. It should also be noted that although there is
unlimited water supplies from MeIntyre Greek, DND Army
de not own the water rights, and a possibility of

contamination of the water shed therefore exists.

MUSKWA GARRISON, B,C.

1. This utility was inetéiled in 1953 at a cost
of $79,190.00.

2. The building is of a permanent standard DND
Arﬁy design housing an aerétor, lime slacker, precipitatior
coagulatlon tank, hypochlorlnating pumps and a water
tower.

3. Water is pumped from a well by a 15 HP
electrically driven pumb located close to the Muskwa
Riyer ard has an output of 15,000,000 gals‘per yeer.

be The water is pumped to the water tower for
aeration, passes through lime treatment, pumped

through a sludge blanket in the precipitation tank,
overflows fo an underground reservoir and is chlorinated
while being discharged for storage, then to the

dlstributlon system,
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5. " Owing to the high iron conteﬁt~of the water iﬁ
this area, haulage of treated water from'Muskwa to Fort
Nelson is necessary fof HME use.

6.  Constant maintenance and repairs te this
system has proved a cestly item over the years and it
has been prooosed that an alternéte plan for water from
the Muskwa River be used in the future.

7. This would consist of a large enough reservoir
to contain at least a year's supply Qith 1afge enough
pumps to fill it over a periocd of two months because the

Muskwa River is only clear for use during that period.

M4 INTENANCE CAMPS - WATFR SUPPLY

There are fourteen maintenance camés, normally
containing forty to fifty persons each. These camps
derive their water supply from wells. The water is
distributed throughout each camp by a pressure system,
the piping being of sufficient size to allow for water
_ required by fire fighting apparatus. The water temperature,
particularly}in the Yukon portion of fhe Highway, is
never very much above freezing, generally measuring
. about 33°-35° F. It ié interesting to note that most
of the wells in use to date were originally drilled by

‘the US Army,
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CHAPTER_V

RAUGHTING AND PROPERTY RECORDS

1. Due to the great haste with which the Alaska

Highway was built, little or no thought was given te the

keeping ef up-te-date records for buildings, utilities,

or the land en vhich they steed. When the Highway was

handed ever in 1946 by the US Army to the Canadian Army

it included:-

8.

‘b.

C.

d.

e.

The Railhead Camp at Dawson Creek, B.C.. -
E-ight.een Maintenance Camps along the Highway. .'
Tl’iil_'t.een Airstrips. |

The Whitehorse Area.

Numerous miscellaneous sites including 30
censtructian camps (abandoned ) and 18 sites

of emergency shelters..

2, For much ef this property there were no plans in

existence, necessitating the follewing tasks fer the draughting

‘effice:-

8.

Ce

Te.carry out a survey of the bourdaries ef all

cam§s of a permanent nature, so that formal.
reservations ceuld be made for thesé sites.
It was necessary te. preduce site plans »of all.
active camps -and buildings being used by the-
NWHS elong the Highway. |

To make a sur\rey of all camp sites aiong the
Highway that were net required By~ the |
Canadian Army se that land and buildings

canld be declared surplus.

3. The initial survey of abandened .camps turned up

more than 125 sites of buildings along the Highway, .seme .

with as few ag one or two-buildings, some with many

buildings. It was also fourd that many abandoned buildings .
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hed beén piifered; irdeed, at Some sites it had beefi
do. complete a job that only the fownationd were left,
Betuisen 1946 and 1986 most of theds buildingd vere
takeh bn cﬁérée s6 thgfvthgy could be disposed ef, as
they were cfeating a hazard to curious twurists
travelling the Highway.

Some difficulty was encountered in the early
dayé when these buildings were sold, as many purchasers
tesk only that part of the building which was ef use to
them, leaving the rest to rot on the site. It was found
that as the buildings were no longer DND, and in most
- cases on public land, DND could do nothing to correct this.
The policing of buildings declared surplus to the Crown
Assets Disposal Corporation, is now stricty routine, and
this situation is no longer encountered.

In many cases it was found impossible to sell
the buildings, and the Army had to destroy them and clear
the site. This wéé generally done by controlled burning
during the winter months.
be The bourdaries of most permanent camp sites were
fixed and permanent reservations for those located in
B.C. were given in 1951, and those located in the Yukqn
Territory, in 1955. A notable exception to this is
Camp Tekhini in Whitehorse, where the request for a.
permanent réservation is still pending, awaiting ﬁhe
completion of a DIS survey.

5. The production of site, outside service ard
buildings plans for the camps are still in progress. The
absence of plans and records when the Highway was turned
over, the great distances that have to be travelled to

secure information, and the short length of summer each
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year for field work, has made this a most formidable task.
This work is, in fact; still in progress, with
constant uﬁiating and feviSioﬁé ﬁeiég ﬁ@de to éiisting
pldhs. Site and servics plans fér all ndihténandd damps
and other sites with DMD owned buildings (some 30 sites),
also floor plans for the 723 buildings in these camps
have been produced. |
6. In gddition to producing existing building énd
site plans, the draughting staff produces drawings for
proposed projects, the largest being two civilian single
personnel - quarters, one malél one female, which were
completed in Camp Takhini in 1955.
7. When the Alaska Highway was handed over in 1946
to the Canadian Army the electrical distribution syétem
and the water and sewer lines for all the camps along
the Highway and the City of Whitehorse, were handed over
also. This it fourd itself not only responsible for
the maintenance anmd distribution of utilities to NWHS ard
other government agencies, but also, in many cases, to
civilian agencies and many individual civilians. This
required the preparation of many individual agreements
by the Property Records Section, urder the supervision
of the Chief Draughtsman.' In 1959, the electrical
generating and distribution system was sold to:the
Yukon Electrical Company Limited, who now service the
Whitehorse Area,
Utilities distribution for most maintenance -
camps is still the responsibility of 17 Works Coy RCE,
At various locations on the Highway, utilities (water and
electrical power) are supplied to other government

agencles and civilians, These agreements are prepared by
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the Property Records Section. In 1946, a ledger system
was used to record all properties and agreements |
sdministered by DND (Army). This was followed by a
cérdéx systelh'iahieh was introduced about 1951. This
systém is now uéed' for all Army installations in
Canada, and has proven to be most efficient.
8. In 1962, all draughting and property records
functions of the Fart Nelson Detachment were moved to the
main draughting office at Whitehorse.
9. The following personnel have been in charge of
the Draughting Office and Property Records Section since
its inception:~

Sgt HAMMOND  HWJ 1946 to 1949

Sgt OLLIVER GR 1949 to 1952

Ssgt WYATT SG 1952 to 1953

WO 2 CASSEIMAN MJ 1953 to 1956

W02  SMITH EE 1956 to 1959
W02  BROWN RW 1959 te 1963
WO 2 WYATT 36 1963 to 1964
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CHAPTER VI

ENGINTER. AND RCOC._STORES
T.. At the time of handover in 1946 largeuquanﬁitiesrof'stores;
were received.from the U.S. Army in bulk form. .The stéres were .
an accummilation of construction materials used to construct the
Alcan Highway which stretches 1,800 miles fr§m'Daws§n Creek, BC,
to Gulkana and Fairbanks, Alaska. The stores ﬁad:béen brought in-
by road from Dawson Creek, EC, Gulkana, Alaska and‘by'réil from
Skagway, Alaska to Whitehorse,-YT..
2. 17 Works Company RCE took over the stores for -
maintenance of buildings, grcunds, and utilities along the.
Highway. The bulk of these storés were at Whitehorsé, YT, but
udriok quantities were scattered at various camps along the 1,221.4
miles of highway from Dawson Creek, BC to the Alaskan border. .
3. These engineer stores, made up .of some 10,000 items,
were not completely brought to charge until about 1954 due to
lack of storage space and trained personnel. .
be . The value of these storss at today's prices could be |
estimated at $3,000,000.00. They were'locéted in three main
areas, the Dowéll”Area in the City of Whitehorse, YT,{Upper‘
Whitehorse,about two miles away, and the third, twelve miles away
at MacRea. These areas included three compounds and twenty~-eight
separate buildings. . Most of the buildings were small, widely
separated; and without light or heat, unsuitedafor-storage
purposes since uost of the working days in winter are dark and -
cold. .
5. As'personnel became better trained and needs becane
clearer, the stores for which there was no. foreseeable use were -
sold through Crown Assets Disposal Corporation. Stores which:.
were in excess of requirements were shipped to the Engineer -
Stores Depot in Wainwright, Alberta. Remaining stores were
incoporated into works.
" B Although the stores were received in bulk, at scattered

locations, there was no evidence of pilfering.
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T .~ During the period‘bfzre-orgaﬁiiatioh'afﬁer 1952, a
self accounting detachment of;17‘werks'Compen& RCE ﬁaeufermed
at Fort Nelson, BC, Mile 300 vhich relieved the FCE at
Whitehorse, YT, Mile 918 of the duty of purchasing stores for
‘what was becomlng known as thé Southern Area. In 1958 the
stores section changed over superv151on from a c1villan
technicai offlcer grade 3 to superv151on by a W02 Engineer
Accountant Stores Officer.
. 8. Stores section duties included'the'pufehase of stores
by requisition to Department of Defence Production et Edmonton
andeancouver. Stores of a bulky or heavy nature:are
 requisitioned from Vancouver to take advaﬁtage of the lower
water frelght rates. Because of the restrieted variety of
stores held by merchants in Whitehorse mach use is made of Local
- Purchase Orders through 13 Works Coupany RCE in Edmonton for
. small or urgent-requirements.

9. ' The stores are operated the saie as stores in a more
populated ares except that higher stock levels are maintained.
“due to the long lapse between ordering and receipt of stores.
Fast moving stores require a nine month level to.ensure‘stores
are available for issue when required. In 1952 there was as
much as six to nine months time lapse between 6rdering and
receipt, - Now two months seems to be about normal. |

- 10. The most harassing problem of operatlng in an 1solated
area is getting &n error corrected. An example of thls was a
fairly urgeht order for four sinks 18" x BO"lx 8", The firm
sent in 18" x 30" x 5". The firm was advised to. please ship -
in the correct size and the incorrect size would be returned
but the order was dupllcated w1th four more 18" X 30" x 5",

In the meantime, three more sinks 18" x 30" x 8" were ordered,

along came three more 18" x 30" x 5", By this.time the biumbefs
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and receiver were becoming frantic. .The firm Qés written
agai£ and came back with the reély.that they were sorry but
sinks 18" x 30" x 8" were no longer manufactured. The

éleven sinks 18" x 306 x 5" were‘returne& and finally

18" x 24" x 8" delivered instead. The operation lengthened
out to months, o

11:-  During this period of haném)er since 1946 there wab
another engineer unit operating on the Highway, the Highway
Maintenance Establishment. Itloperated independently except
that 17 Wbrks Company provided it with buildings, grounds,

and utility services. Many of the storesfuéed by both units
are.similar, lumbef is an example. The first indication that
Highway Maintenance Establishment and 17 Works Company were
to_become amalgamated was in 1957 when some items of stores
were consigned to Highway Haintenance Establishment Camps for
prgventi#e and emergency maintenance.” - _

12, By the winter of 1962-63 it was evident that the
alignment of the stores section éf the two units was neéessary
to prevent wasté through duplication of purchasing, transporta-r
.tion, storage facilities, and use of personnel. The austefity
programme of 1962 helped to hastén the process. The
amalgamation although it did not go through any formal
.ceremony was completed in August 1963 én the completion of

a stocktéking-of all Highway Maintenance Stores. At this
point Highway Maintenénce Zz.ablishment stores were absorbed
by 17 Works ‘Company HRCE.

13. With the continuéd'reeorganizaiién of prbéedures:and
improvement in key-personnelsthe stores section is increasing
.its.efficiency in its functions. At the tine of announcement
~of handover of thé Alcan Highway to the Department -of Public
Works, 18 years after it was taken over from the United States

Army, the combined Highway Maintenance Establishment and .
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17 Works Company stores section consists of slightly less

that $500,000,00 worth of stores and the following:

14.

8,

b,

e,

f.

The

8e

b.

Ce
d.

e

f.

g

h.

The main warehouse (Bldg R<6) in the Services
Area, A heated and lighted building with
sdequate office space.

An old engine shed :(Bldg R-72) unheated for

‘gtorage of rough lumber, and non-perishable

stores.

A small three stell garage (Bldg R-9) for

stbrage cf surplus stores.

A building at Mile 918 to téke~the overflow éf
materlal requiring protectlon from the weather.
AR outside storage area near Bldg R=6,

‘n outside Storage area at %ile 918 for Highway
Weintcncsas Dsbablishment culverting, and
heavy ﬁimber. |

staff consists of the folloving personnel:

2 storen 1 grade 2

Rt et salat

W
w
ct
o
13
¢
i
¢
-

09
8
O
@®
|

packer and helpers
clerk grade 3
clerks grade 1
typist

W02 Engineer Accountant

N

Sgt Engineer Accountant
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CHAPTER VII

TRANSPORT AND PLANT

l.- Informatiou concernlﬁg resources of equipment and
vehicles durlng the early days of 17 ES & W Coy and 17 Works
Coy is nebulous. Initially any vehicles required were supplied
to the tradesmen by DND., Service drivers in the unit were
non-existent so foremen ;nd tradesmen were required to contribute
their talents as chauffeurs, and presumably, as amateur
mechanics. There apparently were some compensations for this
contributary service as individuals could borfow DND vehicles
for recreétional purposes (plus a tank of gas) for week-ends
with a "ration" of 200 miles.
2. The only current knowledge of the unit's capabilities
in 1946 with fegard to plant and equipment, reveals that any
pieces available were‘inherited from our predecessors - the
U.S. Army Engineers. Records indicate that during the last
feﬁ days of the 1949-50 fiscal year the "Plant Section" of
17 Works Coy was placed on Part V of the Establishment,
seemingly an admission that times had changed and the heavy
equipment was here to stay.
3. In February 1953, it was noted by Major RC Paris, that
the following equipment was in usage (although not for long) in
Whitehorse:

Dozer (D8) - 1, Dozer (D6) - 1,

Constructibn truck - 1, 5 ton oil spray truck - 1,

Truck mounted air compressor -1,

Trugk with slnge pump - 1, Motor grader - 1,

Backhoe (£ yd) - 1, Concrete mixers -.4,

40 ton pull trailer - 1, Well drill rig - 1,

Trailers with transfofmers - 2

Trailer with steam jenny - 1.
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4? f : F1ve of these items were annotated as being surplus
to entltlement, thus 1mply1ng that the Works Coy was

g01ng "gll out“» Altogether the unlt holdlngs totalled some
60 vehlcles and pleces of equlpment between Whltehorse and ‘
Dawsbﬁ Creek The admlnlstrative support p”ov1ded on. the
Establlshment at that time was limlted to 3 mechanics

{2 in Whltehorse, 1 in Dawson Creek).
5. In the further evolution of 17 Works Coy, such
:niceties as civilian drivers, miliﬁary mechanics, and
administrative -siaf_f were added to the MI and Plant section,
Finally in 1962 a final reorganization resulted in an "RCE
Garage-"being ‘'set up under the jurisdiction of NWHME to
edminister ali engineer plant and equipmentjincluding that for-
17 Works Coy., Vehicles and drivers ﬁere placed under the
contfqleqf 19 Coy RCASC at‘theﬂeameetime,-thus'dispensing'with
17 Works Coy;responsibilitiee in the field of transport and -

equipment,
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CHAPTER VIII

 EIRE SERVICES

History of the Northwest Highway System Fire.
Department of the Départment of National
Defence -(Ai‘mj;) ) in Whitehorse, Yukon Territory.

By GS Swanson, Fire Officer .3 ‘ 1964

The Fire Department was first organized under the
-direction of Mr RJ Dunlop, who. was assigned the duties of
Fire Chief, on the 16 of May, 1946.

" Mr Dunlop had been previously 'emplbyed as Fire
Chief with the US Army Air Fr..arce, -at the Airbase in
Whitehorse, Yukon. |

In accordance with the policy of the'.Depﬁrtment
of National Defence, the Fire Depértment was manned w_i.th‘ a
. cémplete -civi.l'ianr ‘staff.

Operations were commenced in-an existing»lFirehall,
‘building F-33 located in.the area known as the Dowell -or "F"
Area, which had been turned over to the Canadian. Army, by
" the Americans. B

At this ‘time, Rear Head“quarte.r.s, NWHS, ‘in ¥dmonton,
were hiring persomnel for the Highway System., Personnel to
- £111 the firefighter vacancies were sélected by commandéering
‘men arriving in Whitehorse with the DND and placing them on
i.-dut_y at the Firehall, Within two or three days, the Fire
- Department strength consisted of, Fi‘retCh‘ief Dunlop, two
Fire Lieutenants and twelve Firefighters, divided into two
Cshifts. | |
~ In addition, the Fire prevention branch was

'-orgéni-zed in the same period. Two men were employed. on
‘this work, one on Highway inspections and one in the
o ‘fexfiﬁguisher .shop., The total strength of the Department

- becoming -seventeen men.
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‘Because of the lack of trained firefighters, a
very intensive training programme was necessary in order
to cope with the ever present danger of fire., The first
weeks of operation were devoted to pumper Operaﬁion, hose,
ladder, and hydrant hookup drilié, rescue practice,
foréible entry aha nbﬁy 6£hér required subjects such as
sﬁfiﬁkler Syétéms, water éupplieé and so Qn. Othgr
pfdbléms dﬂring‘érgénizatién to Be considered were liaison
ﬂiﬁﬁ ﬁhits in tire reporting procédure, ensuriné aﬂéQuacy
ke fifé éxfiﬁgﬁishefs and pfbfecﬁivé equipment in
buildings becoming occupied. rersonnel matters and related
subjects were immense. For a time, due to establishment
problems within the works unit, the additional duty of
running the MI section was handled by the Fire Department,

On formation of another Fire Department in 1951
at Muskwa Garrison, the Fire Chief of this Department was
responsible for the overall supervision of both firehalls
and fire equipment and fire prevention measures over the |
.entire Highway.

Since its inception in 1946, the Fire Department
has been carried on the establishment of 17 Works Coy RCE
for the purposes of technical éupervisioﬂ, training and
persomel matters, the commarding officer of the works,
coy having the additional duty of being the Fire Marshall
of the NWHS. The officers who have served in this

capacity are, in order of succession:-

Capt Gillespie Apr 1956 to Mar 1948
Capt Graham Apr 1948 to Dec 1950
Major Paris Jan 1951 to Apr 195/
Major Couloumbe ‘Mar 195/ to Dec 1956

Major Mclellan - Dec 1956 to Nov 1957
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Major Osborne ‘ Nov 1957 to Aug 1958
Major Welbe ‘ Aug 1958 to Jun 1961
Major Nicklom: Jun 1961 to Jul 1963

Major Elfner = Jul 1963 to Present

F IREFIGHTING APPARATUS AND FQUIPMENT

- On términating their tenur:é or} the Alaska Highvay,
the Americans turned over large dmounts 8f up th date
firefighting equipment? tools and fire trucks.

Available for fire departmént use were four
fire trucks, all triple combinatien pumpers of 1942 desiga.
A1l pumps were of the centrifugal type. - These vehicles
were:- 7
DND No 79-411, Ward laFrance, 3 ton, 750 GPM midship meunt
DND No 79-410, International, 2 ton, 500 GPM midship mount
DND No 79-409, Ford" | 2 ton, 500 GPM front'mount
DND No 79-592, Chevrolet 2 ton, 500 GPM front mount
Two of these vehicles are still in use en: the

Highway System and are DND No 79-411 Ward LaFrance, wﬁich
has been based in the NWHS Firehall since takeover ard
DND No 79-592 purrently at MP 1083. .

 Fire trucks presently held by this Departmént
 are all triple combination pumpers and the pumps are of
the centrifugal type, -these are:-
- DND No 51-94985, Internaﬁional, 5 ton, 750 GPM midship mount
DND No 54-01909, Pierre Thibault, 5 ton, 840 GPM midship mount
DND No 79-411

HOURS OF WORK

With the exception of the Fire Chief and the twe-men:
assigned to fire prevention work, the tour of duty fer
firefighters at the beginning was 24 hours on duty and

2/, hours off. This system continued until 1954 when a

/"
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thres' shift system designed to faéiiitatefa 56 hour work
week was emplayed . fﬁis'ﬁas initiéily worked on a ten

and fourteen hour shift basis and was followed fer-about
one year. Due tp-otherréomplications involving the o
manning of a secom Firehall in Camp Takhini, this method
was found impracticablégandva three shift system of 24
‘hours onAand 48 ﬁoufs off duty wés*aﬂqpted and continued-
ever since. With the advent of the three'Shift systém,

additional meﬁgWéré.necéésary'té*provide adequate crews,

the latest edtablishmént, including fire departient
-officers being 27 men.
FUNCTIONS |
Fire Coﬁtrol
The need for an organized fire department was
A.immaiiately recognized by the Canadién Army, on taking -
over the operation of the Alaska Highway. A1l buildings
récéived'fr§m the Americans were wooden frame structures
with the exception of ﬁhe odd tin Quonset hut; DND -
buildings, such as an extremely large hospital, barracks,
warehouses and Suiliings selected;for Head quarters
occupancy were situated within the boundariés\of Whitehorse.
To further complicate matters, these areas weré‘intérsperSed“'
with civilian structures. Space heaters of the oil burning
type and oil bﬁrners were used in the majority of heated
buildings. Because_of the condition of this equipment,
~ there was a cOntinualrdanger of fire.
The first_dﬁty was énd is the fife protection of
| all units amg holdings of the DND Army, in Whitehorse.
Dué»to the inter-relatioﬁshiﬁ gf the DND and Whitehorse
éreas, fire protectibﬁ was extended to the town with the

stipulation that firefighting action in progress could be
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terminated at any time, in thé event that A'rmy
installations requlred the full resources of the NWHS
’ Fire Department to contain a flre. | |
Fireflghtlng assistance.on a first call basis
-was extenieﬂ to the City of Whltehorqe from the . ‘
c0mmencement date in 1946 to November 1962, when the NWHS
Fire Department moved to its present location in Camp
Takhini. Assistance is still belng provided to the City
on a.seepnd call, or,fdirect request basis.
' Fire Preventign. | |
' As previously mentioned, firefighter technicians
were trained in the duties of fire {nspections and
extinguieher recharging, throughout the Highway.System,
This function vas commenced in the same pericd that the
Fire Department was being organized. Fire sefety
inSpeetione were carried out in all maintenance camps
from Mile 0, Dawson Creek, B.C. to Camp 1206 near the
~ hlaska border. Part of the work verforned consisted of
»fire safety lectures amd demonstrations of extinguisher
operatien.
Reports of fire hazards found, were directed from
17 Wbrks Coy RCE to the applicable unit, or, action was
taken by the works coy to 00rrect}conditions vhich came -
within their scope. | o
- Fbctin’guigner Maintenance
| A rather unigue function was performed by the
" works coy within the organization of the fire department.
This was: the testlng, repair and recharglng of all types
'of flre extinguishers.
: So far as'it‘isvknown, no:other;fire departnent
'in Canads has ever performed this type of work. ‘Excessive

oos /46



- 46 -

delays in the feturniof discharged éxtinguishers,
tfenepcrtetion costs and so nn, were contributing
factors in the requirement of this function. It was.
necessary that the works. coy procure many 1tems of tools
and equlpment for whlch there were no tables or issue
 sca1es, and was further complicated because of the 1ack
fof identificatlon or 1ist1ngs in Ordnance catalogues.
Thls Department was dhle tn charge 002 extinguishers_“
‘ard dry chemlcal cartridges, Hydrostatic testing devices
were provided and many pther pleces of equipment to do
the work,
On annual recharging trips nver. the Highway,

reconiitioned extinguishers were carried which reSUIted
in any defective FAFFE found being exchanged_on theAspot;
the defective or discharged FAFFE then being returned tn
_the fire department for servicing.
AREAS
| o "At‘the takeover period in 1946, the areas
requiring fire protection services were, for the main
part located in or near the Town of Whitehorse. These weres-
MAM _ WBN _ WFN Aregs situated in the town site.‘,Refinery
area, now the'Ser-vicefs Ares, Standard 011 EMQs which is now
part of Camp Takhini, American Pipeline area which is now
- Camp 918.' Upper ard Lower Tank Farms and the McCrae
warehousing aree which was used up to 1963 ard the Town Ar
Whitehorse. | V

During the periocd of 1946»to»1964 under‘the
Canadian Afmy, eome.changes have occured'ih the areas of
regponsibility of the fire department. A and B sreas were
gradually vacated, but other areas such as Camp 718 and the

Refinery Area were expanded. TMQs were constructed in
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Came Takhini along with'permahent buildings such as
headquarters ard warehouSes ete, 1n the Sermices Area.
Over the years the growth of the c1vilian
populatlon in the Wh1tehorse area has resulted in new
| 'SubdiVisions being formed along the Highway_to the No?th
ami South of Camp Takhinl. The éfees to the North;lkﬁown
as Porter Creek and Crestv1ew, were extended fire protection
by the Commander NWHS.and this arrangement was formalized
in 1963 by an agfeement between the Minister of Natibnal
Defence ard the Yukon Gomernment | o
Due to the delay encountered in respondlng to
: fire calls in Camp Tekhinl, a secord firehall was opened
in the Yukon Forestry.BuiLﬂing»in Apr 1953. This was
later moved to Building 21 in Camp Takhini.
| A new firehall was completed in October, 1962 on
itme.eriginal site of Building 21, Camp Tekhini and was
officially opened on the 13 of November 1962 by the .
- Goc Westerm Commamd. The original firehell, Building F-33
was- vacated at thls time. | . o
On 16 Nov 63, a Pierre Thibault pumper was -
transferred from the Department of Transport to the
Canadian Army. At this time, DND became responsible for -
the'fire pfotection of DOT and RCAF installations at the
Airbese and the Vallyview housing area.
.'Areas of respongibiiity of this'Fire Department
as of 1964 are:e | | | |
Services Area - Camp Takhini - Camp 918 - Porter Creek -
Crestview - Vallyview - DOT & RCAF at Airbase - Upper ard
Lower Tank Farns Marwell Area - "F" Area - McCrae -
A351stence on Aircraft crashvfirefighting.
'Request for assistance by vCityA of Whitehorse.
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ADDITIONAL FIREFIGHTING FORCES

7 One of the 6riginél fire trucks, No 79-592 was
based in fhe HME garage in Fort Nelson, B.C. in'1946. ,It
waé later m§ved to the Loran Camp in Dawson Creek;in.l949,’
havirig been repiacéd by truck 79;155; in Fort Nélson; |

In June 1953, a fire department was opened in the
newly completed Muskwa Garrison, Mile 295. Truck No 79-409 A
vas the first vehicle used by this department. The fire
officers who have been in charge of the Mugkwa Fire

Departmént, are in order of succession:-

Mr CF Jensen 1953 to 1955
M N Smith 1955 to 1959
Mr' E Armstrong 1961 to 1964

In Méy, 1960, as a result of negotiations between
DND amd the Yukon Government; a fire departﬁent was
organized in Watson lake, Yukon, MP 635. The Fire Chief
selected to head this Department was a Ssgt in ROTME.
The preliminary 6rganization ahd bersoﬁnel matters were
arfanged hw'headquarters‘staff. 'The éréw,consiéted éf
- HME employees and civilian VOlunteers and were tralnei by
Fire Officer G Swanson and Firefighter W Weigand.

The fire truck provided to this department was
No 79-592, recovered from the Loran Qamp;‘léter replaced
by truck No 52-92019 from the NWHS Fire Déparfment in 1963.

~ Preliminary planning to base truﬁk No 79;592 and

form a fire department at'Destruqtion\Baj, MP 1083 began
in Jan 1964. I
| FIRE ALARM SYSTEM _

In the early périai of operations,'thé repoﬁting
of fifes was maihly depenient_on teiephone gnd verbal

reports. An annunciator panel was installed in 1946
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covering such occcpancies as the army power plant,
military hospital anﬁ similef StructUres., The exact
number of Buildings or areas hooked to this syetem'is
not known, but believed to be about twelve._

This sySuem was replaced in 1949 by a Northern
Elettric Gamewell Type B minicipal board with 2 box -
circuits.

N Fire alarm bnxes connected tn this system were
installed in strategic locatlons through the Town and Army
Areas. As PMQs were built in Camp Takhini, boxes were
.added'to cover these. RCAF bcxes were alsr hooked tn
ihe arny system until they installed their own equipment.
In 1952, 51 boxee were on the line. On takeover, of
firefighting duties frourDOT -and- RCAF" in 19A2, their hexss
were again comnected to the army system. ‘The total boxes
.now on the 1ine are 67.
| A notable example of the attention given to fire
-qafety by DND is the inclusion of internal alarm systems
in ell recent medium to high value permanent buildings
constructed since 1946«f Provision was also made over the
years to prevmie master bexes wifh internal alarm systems
to such buildings as the military hospital, RCEME
Wofkshop) Ordrance warenouse.

The end result is‘a modern ard up to date alarm.
systen. -During the years‘it'hae been in service, the
Gamewell System has constantly received normal
maintenance ard has never~requiredvmajor repairs.

RADTO COMMUNIGATIONS |
V Acticn’was taken in 1953 to eqﬁip the fire
department with radios. This nas proven to be one of

the most valuable tools for fire control ever obtained
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by the unit,

Two base stations ard four mobile unlts were
iﬁstalled, providing net between all trutks and
'firehalié.

They were found 1nva1uable durlno flreflghtlng
'operations, in that 'secord ard thini trucks could be
-called to the fire instantly or even before the firagt
- truck arrived :at the fire.

‘In many instances, due to the réiio net, the
-fire trucks were either withirawn from one fire to
proceed diréptly to another fire or were directed to-a
secord fire while returning from a first call. In some
cases, trucks were alerted ard dispatched to fires whlle
-away from the firehall on tralnln? ‘or other dutles. o
These units are of ‘the Motorola type and have never required
zreplaceﬁeﬁt.

_ HYDRANT AND WATER SUPPLIES

In the early days of'operation,'the'bnly hyirént
system for fire protection services were those oﬁned By. |
the Army. Hydrants were locatéd in A, Band F Areas
within the téwn and at the present site of Camp Takhini.
In many cases, the use of the Army hydrant system was the
ohly reason tﬁat fires of éonflagration proportions were
.évoiied;- Hééé iayS'were‘ﬁaie from Army hydrants as long
:és 4000 feet at some Whitehorse fires. | |

Hydrant water supply was obtained by gravity
feed from two reservoifs in the Army watef system, one-
:eserVOir~being iocatei in Upper Whiteﬁofse, the other
in.theivicinity of the Airbase.

| The only source of water for firefighting
»purposes in the Town‘ofAWhitéhorse for a ﬁﬁmber‘of
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: years was an electrically driven centrifuga1~pump_in
the‘Yukon Electric power plant at First A%enuéuéﬁd
Main Street. |
COURSES |

' In 195/, a course in firefighfiﬁg methods and

" tactics was extended by the Defence ResééfchABOaﬁd fire
Department in Suffieli, Alberta, The félloﬁing personnel
6f‘this Departﬁent\éttended the course:- TFire Chief
RJ Dunlop, Fire Officers G Swanson, S Wilcox, N Smith,

D MacDonald. | |
 From 1961 to 1963, the DND-NWHS arranged to
provide éandﬂiates to the RCAF‘Automatic Fire Protection

and Detectioﬁ_Systems course in Camp Borden, Ontarié._

" This course was attended by the Fire Chief RJ Dunlop,
now Fire Chief GS Swanson, and Fire Officers R Reber,
and D ‘MacDonald .

Complete courses in First Aid were given in
1956 and ég_ain in 1963, ori both occasions, all
firefighters wefe gsuccessful in obtaininé certificateg.

Under the direction of the Fire Marshéll, NWHS,
Major DG Elfner, a Fire Safety course of'pné week's
duration, was arranged within the NWHS. The purpose of
‘the course was to provide the necessary kﬁowleige of

. ingpections, fire preventiqn, extinguisher recharging,
firefighting'and related sudjects, to comply with DND |
instrﬁétionse _ » |

Military ad civilian-employées from all Caﬁps"
~and Units of the Highway :Syst.ém attended this course..
The first course wés held in the>first week of Dec 1963
with the secoml course to be held in Feb 1964.

Instructors on the‘first course were:s-
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Capt CJ Barrigar, Fire Chisf GS Swanson and Fire Officer
R Reber. |
AWARDS

The NWHS Fire Department submitted three entries
to the National Fire Pfotectioﬁ-Assbciatioh;.Firé
Prevention‘Contest, for ﬁilitary establishmgﬁts with a

medium class fire department. The following awards were

won:-
1959 Entry »‘ Honourable Méntipn
1960'En£ry First place
1961 Enfry  Third place

FIRES | |

Iﬁ is thought that a history of the“fire depértment
would not be complete without describing some of the more
‘ndtable fires which have occured over the years, Some of
these aré:-{ | | |

In July 1947, a fire broke out in the ROEME
Workshosp located in the Dowell Area and'édjacent to the 17
Works Coy Engineer  Stores. All phe'fire‘tfucké and men
of ihe department were needed to fighf this fire. The
intense heat was radiated scross the rosd to the
Engineér Stores and it was:necessary.to direct hose
streams on the front of the building which was beginning
to smoke. Althngh the RCEME building was lost, most of
the mgchinery was'savedrand the fire waé prevented from
spreéding to other bﬁiliings. .

| An all-out alarm was sourded at 0209 hours on |
13 Feb 54. Involved in this fire w;s an EM, Bullding A-13,

which contained three apartmenté. ‘Fire had brﬁken out in |

the center apartment whichYWas,occﬁpieaAby a member of the
. fire department, Fire Lieutant A McDonell. ‘Prior te the
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_.arrival of the fire trucks, and, as accurately as it
~can be reconstructed, Mr;MbDoheII:h@d'di?ééted'his
wife and éoﬁ from the burhiné premises;7ahd‘apparently
-héd delayed to .obtain somé ciothing..‘ﬁs tﬁg’ﬁifé and
¢hild ran from the Buil_aing,iit 15 thought that the
v;opehing of the door allovéed an inrush of frééﬁ aif
which may have caused d smoke explosion, %Nﬁdiﬁsgﬁeii
peristed in the fire, The rapzdity with ;}hich the
fire épread was unbelievable. The occupants of the
other two apartments were assisted to safety by
firefighters as smoke and flames burst into their
quarters. The building and all contents were a total
loss. |

On two seperate occasions, interruption of
power supply was avoided when power plants ceught fire,

The first incident involved the Army power
plant on Fourth Avenve. The alarm was received from
Box 213 at 0243 hours, 6 Jan 51. On arriving at the
power plant, the fire was found inside the building;
Large sheets of flame were spreading over the ceiling
but did not involve the walls, As firefighting
proceeded, tarpaulins were draped over the generators
to keep off falling water and debris. Power was
maintained during the entire pericd of operations which
- lasted nine hoﬁrs.

The second incident occurred at the new power
plant in the Services Area: This fire involved the
fuel supply tanks for the Diesel generators, 0il soaked
grourd and some fuel drums., The fire was put out in
“about 25 minutes, but required the use of twé trucks am

offqiuty firemen. A large portion of the aluminum siding
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of the bﬁilding waS'LUrnt-away..

An alarm was received by telephone on the
12 Sep 58 at 195§ hours; reporting a fire at PMQ 24
Cassino, Camp Takhini, Fire trucks from both Tirehalls
answered»this cal1; The fire had originated in the
11ving room and involved the furnishings. The building
was heavily charg=d with fléme,.smoke and heat. Three
children were rescued from the upper story of the FMQ
and the fire quickly breught unmder control and
extinguiéhéd. - |
| During june end July, 1958, an extrémély iafge
‘ féréét f‘ire‘ threatened the camp areas and the .éity .. The
fire approathéd the Whitehorse area from the West along
the Alaska Highway and from the Néerth aloné tﬁe Mayo
Road. FExtensive use of men, bulldozers, véhicles and
othef equipment was provided by all Army units in
this area, Persomnel of the works coy were engaged
in all mamer of work in attempts to stop the advance
of the fire. Heavy duty equipment was used in clearing
fire breaks, Soldiers patrolled the fire lines and
constanf reports of the advance of the fire ﬁas
maiﬁtained. A constant wétch wes maintained on the
Qater tower by fireiighters to report on the condition -
of the fife and t~ watch for spot fires in-the camp
ard services areas dus to t"~ ~onstant rain 6f hot
ashes descerding on then, |

While the fires described were all directly
associated with Army installations, fires of a similiar
' nature were encountered in the City of Whitehorse and
the surrounding area. This Repértment has also been
involvei in nurerovs rescu~s ranging from cats up trees
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~to men trapped in cave-ins, hgart attacks, and searcﬁes
for drowning ﬁictims. The unit provided the fire
department with tw§ Stevenson Minutman Resuscitators,
which have been employed on many obcasidns.

INJURIES -

In the course of the years of firefighﬁing;
the incidence of injury inturred while %irefigh‘tiﬁg
has been relatively low. No men have been lost ﬁhiie
firefighting, but, it should be mentioned that at times,
this has been narrowly avoided. Some firefighters have
required maiiéal treatment aftér ha&ing been overcome
with smoke and many were made ineffectife at fires due

%o smoke inhalation.

Injuries from electrical shock, cuts', nails and
falling objects have been extremely low. Ffostbite due
Yo the extreme low temperatures haé been a cbnstant
hazard, but only one case required medical attention.
FIRE STATISTICS |

Dufing eighteen yeers of operation, the NWHS
Fire Department has responded to a total of 2,192 fire

 calls. This averages out to slightly better than one
call every third day. |

of tﬁese calls, 32 have been major army fires,
700 have been minor army fires, 42 have been major city
fires and 929 have becen m*-~~. Remaining calls include
false alarms,»rescue'and other emergencies,

- Muskwa Garrison Fire Department have answered

a total of 106 fire calls since its inéeption in June{53.

Records of fires occuring in Highway Maintenance
Camps ére not held by this department, however, ehtries

found in log books show a total of nine,
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HISTORY OF THE MUSKWA FIRE DEPARTMENT

The Muskwa Fire Department was formed in
Jénﬁary 1953 with Mr GE Jenson as Fire.Chief._ He
had one small fire truck and a crew of four men, all
stationed at MP 300, five miles away from Muskwa -
Garrison. HME also had two fire trucks at this
location, mammed by voluntary firemen.

This system proved to be inadequate after a
fire in'the sleeping quartérs at Muskwa on the
4 Mar 1953. The pumper froze en route to the fire,
and as a result, three lives were lost.

A temporary fire alarm gystem was installed at
Muskwa in Sep_1953, consisting of eight alarm stations
that sourd ed a‘horn at the new firehall. .This system
did not indicate the location of the fire call, amd
has ﬂow been replaced by a "Vitagard System" installed
in Sep 1963. |

The fire department now has two trucks, one
stationed at MP 295 and one at MP 300. .The staff
congists on one fire chief and seven firefighters.
It is the only paid, full time fire department iﬁ the
Fort Nelson area, and provides mutual aid end training
to three volunteer fire departments, "Fort Nelson, HME,

and Airbase" .
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CHAPTER IX

GENERAL HISTORICAL INFORMATION

i. - ﬁumeréﬁs ékercises by Caﬁad;an'éﬁa American
;rmdi fdﬁcéé have Eéen heldion the ﬁighwéy, aﬁéyl?;Works
Coj.RCE has supporééd all exercises béth iarge and
sm&ll.: Following is an outliﬁe.6f the type of support
provided for two exercises:- i _
a. HXERCISE NORTH III - 1948 or 1949
The group of buildings known as the
Western Command Buildings in Upper
Whitehorse we?a “itted. up for occupation
by ‘Exercise personnel engaged in Exerctse -
North IIT, It had been intended to carry
out this work by Contract but it was
found that the bid from the Contractor .
-was-quadruple over what it was calculated
Ty #17 Works Coy to carry out the»tésk.v
b, EXERCISE SWEETBRIAR
From the end of August/49 until‘approiimately
the middle of March/50 the main effort of
the unit was concentrated on fitting up
accommodation for 1300 trbopsvfor Exercise
Sweetbriar. In carrying out this task, .
18 "Huts Prefabricated General Purpose"
were used. .Iniaddition.fo this, all of
the Western Command buildings in Upper.
Whitehorse, amd the long warehouse and
‘"H" Hut in the Refinery were atilized.
" These huts were equipped with ablution
rooms - one Prefab in Upper Whitehbrse,

2 Prefabs in the Refinery and in addition
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three lean-two's wére built on the long
warehouse in the Refinery in which Qere
housed ablﬁtion benches; Outside bucket
latrines were proviaed for all acéommbiatidn
érected especially for Exercise éweetbriar.
South of whitehorée, #17 Vorks Cay

| fesponsibility, insafar as Btercise _
Sweetbriar was coancerned, merely iﬁvalved
the installation of an cii stove at Mile
Post 201 and Mile Post 308, with regular
camp ﬁaintenénde. North of Whitehorse, at
Mile 1056;lan existing camp, whicﬁ had
become dilapﬁdétei, was refitted for the
use of Exercise persomnel on their return
trip from Northways. This conversion

| included sheeting the outside of upright
log buildings with tar papér énd the |
inside with Vaneouver Board, the installation
of a well and water supplj system, the
installation of three ranges and adequate
vater storage space and modifying each
living hut by the attaching to their ends
of shelters housing pit latrines., At

Mile Post 1156, there existed an abandoned
camp which belonged to Mr. Kemmeth O'Hara.
This camp was rented from Mr. 0'Hara y
Western Command and tﬁrnei over ﬁo #17
Works Coy to fit up the buildings for
occupatidn. This camp was designed only

to be a lunch stop for returning Exergise

persomel and therefore a minimum of
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sleeping accgﬁmddation ﬁés reguired: A 400
Man Mess Hall was set uﬁ in a large garage
at the site and VIP quafferébyere prepared
for the Deputy Maneouver Commander's
Headquarters. In addition to the foregoing
seven Jamesway Shelters were Set‘up to
house permanent camp personnel.
| At Northways Alaska, #17 Works'

Coy was given the task of installing in a
large hangar, three oil ranges, from which
all Canadian Exerciée persommel were to be
fed.

2. - VWhen the Peace River Bridge collapsed in 1957,

this unit pi-oirided accommodation for the work crews at

Fert St John; installed and maintained the traffic

light system, ard in general supported HME dﬁring the

emergency work on the PGE Bridge.

3, In Camp Takhini the following commmity projects

were completed using voluntary labour, mainly from this

units- .
Construction of RC Chapel - 1954-55
Construption of a two sheet»curling rink - 1954 -
Constrﬁ;tion of three children;s playgrounds - 1956
be During June and July 1958, the unit was called on

by the Civil Power to assist in £he combatting'of an
extremely large forest fire which threatened the.Oity of -
' Whitehorse, Yukon Territory. Listed below are the main
actions taken by this unit to aid the Civii Power en the
dates as shown:- -
a. 19 June 58 - Protection of an oil tank farm,
Whitehorse, Y.T.
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Two fire trucks and ten meh, laid and used
1,500 feet of 24" fire hose; )
53 Jun - Combatting a forest fire a few
miles north of Camp Takhini. '

One fire truck and iwelve men 1aid and used
2,800 feet of 24" fire Hose and 1,500 feet,
of 13" fire hose. All dff—duty pérSoﬁnéi
were called in to protect the maih water
supply area of the Department of National
Defence, Whitehorse 1ocat¢d at McIntyre
Creek.

2/, Jun - One fire truck and a crew of

seven men were put on a river barge and

transported about four miles down the
Yukon River from Whitehorse. From the
anchored barge, they fought river édge
forest fires, pumping approximately
3,000,000 gallons of water from the

river for a period of seven hoﬁrs; This
operation required 2,500 feet of 25

fire hose and 3,000 feet of 11" ferestry
hose. Two sther vehiclee were used to
maintain radio contact,

30 Jun ~ One fire truck and a crew of seven
meﬁ were sent to protect the Department. of
Transport Fan Marker building on the Mayo
Road. From a pump positioned on Lake
LeBarge, they uséd 3,000 feet of 23" fire
hose.

1Jul ; One fire truck and a crew of five

men fought and extinguished a bad bush

.eo/61



- 61A -

flre at MP 931,‘A1aska Highway.

9—13 Jul One fire truck and a crew of
five men were sent “to MP 951 on the
Alaska Highway and with vater pumpai from
the Takh1n1 Rlver, ‘kept the WOoien ‘bridge
crossing this river wet, while'thsv

forest fire burned around it. This_
action preventeifihe bridge from beiné
destrojed.

11 Jul - One fire truck and a crew of
five men were sent to the.HME‘Camp:at

MP 956, to fight a forest fire that had
;11 but encircled the camp buildings.
These were kept wet by the use of 2,000
feet of 21" fire hose and 800 feet of

13" fine hose. Nofouiliings were lost:

A continuous fire watch was maintained in
.'.Camp‘Takhini by unit personnel duringvthe
period 19 Jun 58 to 15 Jul 58 and during
':the same perlod, personnel of this unit
kept a constant check of the fire along
s 55-mile front.. | |
Following is an incident narrated by MaJor
WW Osborne, DFC, CD Commanding Officer of
217 Works Coy RCE at the time:

Sl "One major event. that occurred wasg the
:'forest fire which threatened Whitehorse in
' '58.: It had a humorous aSpect The fire had
4P:enveloped the Takhini Hot Springs area and
| :swept toward Whitehorse on the south side

'of the river. If we were-to cut: the fire
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off, the line of defence was downstream from
Camp Takhini near the dump irea. However,
we were unable to get fire fighting equipment
irito an area where water was available., A
firm was in the process of repairing the 0ld
flat bottom scows in»Ibwer_Whitehorse ané
they had available several large ouiboards
(approx 300 HP)., Brigadier Jones concurred
in our proposal to mount a fire pumper on a
scow and transport it downstream to a point
where we could fight thé fire frém the
river, At the time it seemed such a iogical
solution. The firm which owned the scows
agreed to assist, and we mounted said

pumper on the scow and with about 20
personnel equipped with life jackets, we
shoved off. I was indeed surprised to

fird that the outboard could not meintain
the desired control arnd we "rotated"
‘downstream, We werelunéble to keep in

the deéﬁ water channel and headed for the
sand bar which I think is known as
"Petticogt Bar", However, the draft of the
scow was small ard the momentum carried us
across the bar safely, otherwise we would
have been marooned in the middle of the 
river. The scow continﬁei in a rotating
fashion and by sheer luck we were caught in
a backwater currenﬁ'which permitted us to
make a larding in the neighbourhood that we

had previously recced.  We were able to
co./63
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successfully combat the fire, but
unfdftunately the fire had skipped: the
river and caused havoc on the north shore,
I was subsequently app01nted Adnnral of the
fire department when they presented me with
the tradltional dOg-sled tie ¢lip when I
left 17 Wks."
5.- W1nterlzation of Glacler Camp, MP 75 Haines Road -
Dec 63.

a. In mid November 1963 a decision was reached
that the Department of Public Works on an
'experimentel basis would. attempt to keep
open the B.C. section of the Haines Road
from Mile 48 on the B.C./Alaska bourdary to
Mile 94 on the B.C./Yukon boundary. Mid-way
between is situated a seasonal maintenance
camp at MP 75, - The Department'of Public
Works negotiated »tith the Geverement of
Alaska tovprovﬁie a winter mainténance crevw
which would require-.accommodation at this
seasonal camp throughout ‘the winter. |

b. Immediately after the decision was made,

17 Vorks Coy was given a high priority task

%o condition the camp for winter 1iving at
minimum cost. Originally it was felt that
trailer units, the Mess Hall and the garage
would suffice. However, studies indicated
that all of the existing accommaigtien

could be renovated at a more reasonable

‘cost rather than by the use of trailers.
A_preliminary survey on the site showed.
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that a new water line with a heating cable
and a new pump were necessary to provide

- water. throughout the winter. Storm windows
for ‘the sleepingnaCCOmﬁodaiion and the Mess
Hall amd covered passages betﬁéen:the various
buildings making up the living accommedation

. wdqié be required in additioﬂ; The garage
whiéh jacked sufficient heat and offered
iit£;e resibtande to the prevailing high
winds in the area needed extensivé féﬁéiri
The instgii&tioh of two large oil fﬁrnﬁces
and the lining of the interior Walls and the
ceiling with an aluminum reflectivé paper to
retain the heat were considered an adequate
solution for vehicle maintenance and storage.
A beost in the power output of the generators
for the added winter load was a further
‘requirement,

c. By salvaging surplus equipment and by obtéining
building materials from local sources in the
Whitehorse Area, a small crew under the command
of Sgt A Krantz moved into the camp in extremely
cold weather prior to 1 Dec 63. On 17 Dec the
camp was completely sgug for.a long winter's
stay and the maintenance team was withdrawn tm
Whitehorse.

.6{ 17 Works Coy RCE, Fort Nelson, B.C., Detachrent,

"a. This is a self accounting detachment, except
-for finances, and is responsible for works

gervices in the Southern Area from Dawson
Creek MP O to Muncho Lake MP 456, The present
oc istapt George Stoner, who took over the
detachment in 1961 on his return from Egypt.

Other OC‘ﬁere:-
' ’. . 0/65
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Lt AL Slater  1953-54
Capt AL Ricketts 1954-58
Capt ‘Bo‘p Allen  1958-61
b. The detachment. vas originally located in
Fort Neis(>n, B,C. MP 300, in 1946 a.nd A
movés to Dawson'Qrgék, B.C. in 1949-50.
c. Due to subssquent paving oflthé soufhérn
“end of the Highway, the worklosd sh‘if'éed
North and the detachment was returnei'to_.
Fort Neison about 1958. A new camp ﬁas
being constructod at Muskwa MP 295.
~ During 1953 a compeny size Engineer
Offices, Workshop and Stores were built
for the detachment. In Dec 63, thev
detachmont moved into its neﬁhquarters
atA Muskwa Garris:on from Fort Nelson (MP 300).
7. The present Services Arza, Whitehorse, was
originally occupied by en oil refinery. This \‘Jaé not
in use at fhe time of hardover and during 1947-48 was
dismantled by Bafnes Construction Company, and shipped
" to Edmonton, Alberte via the Alaska Highway amd ‘th'e
* White Pass and Yukon Reilroad. 17 Works Coy supplied a
1arge number of personnel, during off-duty hours, to
assist Barnes Cdnstruc’tion Company with the project.
Heavy equipmenﬁ éperators, construction tradesmen, |
mechanics and storemen were in demand and a great deal
of knowledge was obtained by all in 1lifting and
transporting heavy 'items such as cracking t_pwers ard
associated refinery equipnent. |
8. In 1947, 1948 and 1949, 17 Works Coy ROE
entered a unit float in the "Days of '98" Carnival
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(fererumer of the present Sourdough Rendezvous). In 1949

ene of our stenps, Miss Peggy Slee won the title of

Carnival Queen, | |

% The unit has teken part in all parades held

siﬁée 1946, both in -the AWS role before and after parades

énd as é unit on the pa;ade:sqgare during parades,

Pargdes normally donsisted'ngQw

Annual GOC's Inspection
Annual Commarder's Inspection
Visits of Royalty |
Armistice Day Parades
.Annual Drumhead Services

- 10, Sports act;yities.

a, Sports“héve played an important role in the
Highuay since 194@; There have been annual
leagues for séftball, bageball, hockey,
curling, bowling, etc,vwiih Arqy, RCAF and
civiliaﬁ teams competing together fp;
championghip honours, 17 Wks CoyrRCE has
been actiﬁe in 211 sports throughout the
years, Some of the more notable unit
successes in this field were:-

MWHS Garrison Softball League Champs - 1955,1956,1960

Winners of NWHS Annual Sports_Mget Trqphy 1954,1955

NWHS Annual Rifle Competition - Highest aggregate

individual score, won by S sgt (pow WO02) Bud Evans

in 1960, 1961, -

b, For many years, the unit has held an annual
"Father amd Son Fishing Derby", at Tagish
nge.. Prizes were presented for:the first
fish caught, the largest fish, next largest, etc.
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For boys not getting into the main prize
class, a ruby-eye spimner, Yukon lake -trout
size, was presented., This function was one
of the major summer activities and members of
HME were always present aé guests, as well as
civilian employees of bothvunits. The
organiZérs of this event for several years
were Mr Jim Conn, Labéur;Foreman, Mr Wally
Henderson, Clerk of Works, Mr George Lawrenée,
Carpenter Foreman. The 1963 derby was
organized by QM3 (W02) Al Bone. Mr Conn, wﬁo
had been on the Highway in various capacities
siﬁce 1942, and our labour foreman for many
years, pésséd away suldenly on 11 Jun 1962,
To his memory, all ranks of the unit contributed
towards a suitable memorial, 4 "Jim Corn
Memorial Trophy" was then obtained, amd was
presented to the boy winning the annual
'fidhing.derby. This trophy is to be presented
to RCSME, where it will be perpetuated in
their annusgl Steelhead Derby.

11. In closing this chapter, it is interesting to

- recall that in March 195/ the NWHS was informed that DFW

would take-over in the near future and that only the

- essential ard minimum maintenance work was to be done.

- Iittle did anyone realize that the "near future" would

encompass the next ten years.
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CHAPTER X

CONCLUSION

"It is hoped that the reader of this 'br'ief
History o. 17 WOrks Coy will accept the apologies of
those who have been charged with the responsiblllty of
writlng it for any shortcomlngé and lack f detdil in
certain sectlons f Which he mhy be Not'e famlllar.

The grateful thanks of tHe init are extended
to ﬁll the previous commanding officers who provided
considerable detail during their temure of office. MNost
heipful too, were a number of civilian employees, whose
service with the unit dates béck. in some cases to its
commencenent and who Have been able to cast light on
long forgoften episodes of interest.

It should be recorded that on the unit strength
at its conclusion were three military members who served
on the Highway during thevvery early stages of the
Canadian Army takeover. Two of these are: Sapper "Smokey"
Stover, who was_originélly_with No 1 Road Maintenance Coy,
ana Sapper "Moose" Jordan., The third, Lieutenant "Bert"
Hammpna, algunneriqf World WarAII vintage, joined the unit as
& civilian draughtsman in 1946 and vhile on the Highway,
réturned to uniform ip the rank Qf sergeant. He was
commissioned in the Corps of Royal Qanadian Engineers in
1961 immediately prior to his second posting to 17 Works
Coy from HQ Quebec Cpnménd. It comes with considerable
regret,»ﬁo not_only these three, but also to all whp have
served with the wit, either in‘a military or civilian
capacity to see the emd of the uniﬁ‘s operation.

Stlll, this is not entirely true nor the real
A end of the story. Although_anothen government department

is taking pver the operation of the Highway, the _
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- requirement for maintenance of accommodation and the
operation of camp ﬁtilities must continue, Many old
hands, with their valuable knowledge of the North, will
| remain on to contribute their skills in the support of
the Property ard Building Management Division of the
Department of Public Works in the continued successfui
operation éf the Nofth&esf Highway System.

\ | To the new management, we offer our best
wishes in their future endeavor and trust that they
will integrate early into the community and come to
lcvé the spirit of the Yukon as much as we who must

leave for other assignments have in our turn.
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